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. DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN]) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE |

The tiny settlement of Tavlorstown is nestled in the scenic, rolling farmlands

of Virginia's northern Loudoun County, an area regarded as one of the most beautiful
rural regions .of the state. It is situated on the banks of Catoctin Creek, a meandering
stream which formerly supplied power for the village mill., ‘About two miles north of

the community, the stweam joins the Potomac. The wooded Catoctin Mountain is immediately
- to the eagst of Taylorstown; most of the remaining property in the vicinity is open farm-
land dotted with patches of forest. Little commercial development has taken place to

mar the pasLoral quality of the area. ' : ' o f

The principal landmark of the community is Taylorstown Milli;.a two- story structuré

built. in the late eighteenth century of the local fieldstone. It is situated - down by }
the creek immediately south of Route. 688, the main east-west road through -the town. "
Banked by tall trees, the 34 ¥ 48 foot mill is appreachedby its thrée=bay gable end front.
The gable is weatherboarded and painted dark red, At the peak of  the gable is a hood
covering the hoist; doors are located in the center bays of each level below: =@
Typical of mill architecture, a single. chimney is located in the buildihg's nottheast
corner. The two-story frame extension on the rear was probably put up in the late
‘nineteenth century., Much old framing, flooring and plastering survives on fthe interior;
however, virtually all the machinery has been removed with the mill's conversion to a ;
warehouse and later a residence, Several floods have caused significant but not permanené
damage. ' '

Atop the hill to the north of the mill is a one-and-one-half-story stone dwelling,ﬁ
Hunting Hill, an exceptionally picturesque structure believed to have been erected in
1737 as the re51dence of the original mill's owner. The main part of the house measures
33 X 25 feet with the front wall sheltered by an early, if not original, shed porch
supported on chamfered posts. A later kitchen wing has been placed against the west
wall, Essentially unaltered, the house has a German plan counsisting of a large hall

and two smaller chambers separatedfrom the hall by a board partition. The hall is
heated by a large fireplace centered on the west wall. A small, winding stair is in

the hall's southwest corner. The room's ceiling has exposed summer beam and joists,

The northeast chamber has a fireplace in its northeast cornmer, resulting in the i
chimney rising distinctively on the exterior from the corner of the house. On ok
the slope to the east of the house is the farmer's late nineteenth-century bank barn; i
a smaller farm building is 1mmedlately to the west.

Taylorstown's early store bulldlng is located on Route 688 to the south of
the barn. Erected ca. 1800, the 28 X 18 foot building is a one-story frame structure
with a gable roof. After ceasing to function as a store, the building was used for
a time as a theatre and later a movie house.Now covered with asphalt siding, 1f serves
as an automobile garage, Its original storefront has been replaced by garage doors.

Immediately to the east of the old store building is the community's present
store - Mann's Store, a curious one~story concrete building covered by a shallow hipped
roof. Built in 1904 to replace an earlier building on the site destroyed by fire, the ;

{See Continuation Sheet # 3)
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Although rumerous milling communities survive across the state; feW‘possess a
setting so scenic or a collecticn of- vernacular bu1ldlngs of ‘such’ interesting dlver81ty
as the timy hamlet of Taylorstoww. Even'in its minuteness, Lhe v11lage has 2 historical
ambiance of a quality rarely retained in similar communLtles‘ The origins of Taylorstown
aretraced back to the 1730s when the" settlement of northern Virginia began.” " 'In that
decade English families® from the tidewater region and German and Quaker families from

 Pennsylvania began moving into what was to'become Loudoun County. There the’ Germans
occupied much of the nerthern section, while pockets of Quakers were established around
Waterford, Linceln, and what is now Taylorstown. The Taylorstown site offered a com-:
venient ford across the Catoctin Creek and a steady supply of water power. Thus, im the
1730s the Quaker Richard Brown started a milling operation there and established a farm
on.the property now known as Hunting Hill, The present house at Hunting Hill may havebeen
buillt in 1737, the date traditionally assigned to it, as its dimensions conform to those
escribed by Lord Faxrfax, the proprletor of the reglon, for settlers taklng ap land '
~there., : : ' :

In 1784 Richard Brown's son, Mercer Brown, sold the mill and family farm to
Thomas Taylor of Frederick County, Maryland, who probably built the present stone mill.
The original mill erected by Brown most likely was a log structure as were the majority
of the earliest mills im the region. Taylor acquired with the mill a log miller's house
which has since disappeared. After establishing himself, Taylor began selling off half~
acre lots near the mill. The resulting small community came to be called Taylors Town,
and later Taylorstown, The Taylor family lived-at Hunting M1l and operated the mill for the .
next forty-five years. The last owner to continue the milling operation was Millard C.
Myers, who ran the mill from 1912 to 1958, Today the mill is used as a private residence
owned by Mr. and Mrs. Philip R. Ehrenkranz. . ' ;

Although the mill has ceased its operation the tiny village, composed of less than
a dozen structures, remains unspoiled by either meglect or modern intrusion and all the
structures remaining in the town possess some degree of architectural interest. Of
particular importance is Hunting Hill which may be one of the earliest houses in the
county. Even though it was built in a Quaker community, the room arrangement and the staix
location reflect a German influence. Having been well maintained over the years, with no
significant modernization, the house possessés a charm and antiquarian interest frequently
lacking in restored old houses. The mill is also a rare survival, as the majority of mills
in Loudoun County, & county once known for its manmy mills, have disappeared. Taylorstown
Mill indeed is one of ‘the handful of such structures in the state that has been success-
fully adapted for a hew function; most of the early mills across Vlrglnla stand idle and

-andoned. _ o
0f Taylorstown's other buildings, the eighteenth-century stone cottage known now

(See contipuation Sheet # &)
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Lewis, John G.," Taylorstown, " unpublishedma—nu:scr'ipt in Virginia Historic Lancmarks
Commission Archives. :

"Taylorstown Would Be {fipad Qut," in Echoves of History, Ploneer Amexrica  Society,
Vol, TV, No. 5, September 1974.

Templigzz, Eleanor Lee and N¥an Netherton. Northern Vivginia Heritage. Arlington, VA.,
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION The 61 acres comprising the Taylorstown Historic District
are bounded by a line beginning at a point on N bank of Catoctin Creek, 1900' NE of
State Route 668 bridge over said creek; thence extending approximately 1100'S, crossing
Catoctin Creek to feeder creek, following latter for approximately 600, and continuing
SSW to a point; thence extending approximately 350' SW to a point; thence extending
approximately 700' SW to a point (C), crossing State Route 668; thence extending approx-
imately 400" NW to a point,crossing State Route 665; thence extending appry cimatel
150" 8 to a point; thence extending approximately 250 ' 8W to a point (D) Eﬁeeg°#gfn“atl°“
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4, OWNER OF PROPERTY

(Lot numbers correspond to those indicated on Loudoun County Tax Map Section
11. A sketch map based on this tax map is included with this report)

Lot .4 85
Mrs o —A—Ftisabeth-Mann (also owns #104)

RPD
_ Lovettswille—Veginia 22080

Lots #88, 884 B

Miss C. Joan Rollins

Route 2, Dox 224
Lovettsville, Virginia 22080

Lot # 91 , .

Mr. and Mrs, Philip R. Ehrenkrantz (also own #93)
Route 2, Box 54

Lovettsville, Virginia 22080

Lot # 92

Miss Annma F. Hedrick (also owns¥103)
"Hunting Hill. :

Route 2, Box 53 o
tovettsville, Virginia 22080

Lot.# 93
(see #31)

Lots # 98, 99, 101, 1024

Mr. and Mrs. Raynold Cheronis
Route 2, Box 54-A
lovettsville, Virginia 22080

Lot # 103
(see # 92)

Lot ¥ 104
(see # 85)




Form No. 10-300a
IHev. 10-74)

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HUSTORICPLACES | -~ .
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM =~ (ATEEwERED A1

"UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

FOR NPSUSE Y
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE : i : ONLY

CONTINUATION SHEET #2 ITEM NUMBER 6, 10 PAGE 1

6. . REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

(2) Virginia Histoxic Landmarks Commission Survey
1969, 1974, 1976 State
Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission
221 Govermor Street
Richmond, Virginia =~ 23219

10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA (Verbal Boundary Description cont'd)

thence extending approximately 400' WNW to a point (E) at conflu-
ence of feeder creek and Catoctin Creek; thence extending approx-
imately 550' NNE, crossing Catoctin Creek to a point on § side of
State Route 668 approximately 200’ W of said creek; thence :
extending approximately 300’ WNW to a point (F)}, following & side
of State Route 668; thence extending approximately 600' NNE to.

‘a point (G) ,crossing State Route 668 and continuing through
wooded area; thence extending approximately 300' ENE to a point;
thence extending approximately 350' WNNE to a point (M); thence
extending approximately 330' SE to a point on N bank of Catoctin
Creek; thence extending NE along N bank of said creek to point

of origin. These boundaries coincide with the Taylorstown Historic
Preservation Area District established by Loudoun County on April
20, 1976,

Post-it® Fax Note 7671 |Late ;_”_ 26 Hag;sp 4_
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DESCRIPTION

present structure has its concrete walls scored with deep vee joints to make the walls
appear to be laid in very formal ashlar stonework. ' The front of the building is
sheltered by a shed porch supported on thin posts,

Direetly across the road from Mamn's Store is the Mann house, a ca. 1900 frame
dwelling situated on a broad sloping lawn dotted with fhade trees. Typical of its era,
the two~story, three-bay structure has a gable roof with cross gable and a front porch
ornamented with sawn balusters and brackets. A dwelling of similar age and architectural
character, the Rollins house, is located directly across Route 665 to the west., It too
is set on a broad, grassy lawn and, with the Mann House, adds a homey, late-Victorian
note to the hamlet's main intersection. ' ‘

_ Directly across Catoctin Creek, just to the north of Route 688, is  Foxtom, .2
quaint.one-story cottage built against the hill leading down to the creek. Probably
‘erected in the late eighteenth century, the cottage has walls of the local fieldstone
and is covered by a gable roof, The south side is sheltered by a2 shed porch, Attached
to the north side is a one-and-one-half-story, five-bay, frame wing In the Colonial style,
recently added to make the cottage a more commodicus dwelling.

Catoctin Creek is presently spanned in the village by -a modern concrete bridge
of little visual interest. It replaces a metal truss bridge taken down within the
past tenm years, which was located just to the south of the present bridge, closexr to
the mill. The stone abutments of the former bridge were left in place.

Except for the new bridge and a scattering of mew houses scuth of the main
intersection along Route 665 {not included in the historic district), Taylorstown has
suffered few modern intrusions. The historic buildings, and the scenic open Spaces
between them, form a picturesque, visually cohesive unit. :

CoL
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SIGNIFICANCE

as Foxton. is a quaint example of Loudoun's early vernacular. Likewise, the ca. 1800
town store, although much altered, is a rare example of village commercial architecture
of its period and an important element in the mill complex. The 1904 Mann's Store is

an interesting specimen of early concrete construction with decorative surface treat-
ment, The Mann and Rollins houses are both typical and well-preserved examples of late-
Victorian vernacular dwellings. Their white walls and fancy sawn-work porches add a
festive note to the now sleepy village., Intertwined among all these buildings are well-
tended, old-fashioned landscaped yards which, with the beautiful pastoral scenery
surrounding the community, contribute to make Taylorstown a rural historic district of
exceptional visual quality. :

coL
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